
 
 

Castle House 
Great North Road 

Newark 
NG24 1BY 

 
Tel: 01636 650000 

www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk 
 

Wednesday, 14 June 2023 

Chairman: Councillor J Hall 
Vice-Chairman: Councillor L Tift 
 
Members of the Committee: 
 
Councillor N Allen 
Councillor A Brazier 
Councillor L Brazier 
Councillor R Cozens 
Councillor D Darby 
Councillor R Jackson 
Councillor Mrs S Michael 
 

 
 
Councillor D Moore 
Councillor K Roberts 
Councillor S Saddington 
Councillor P Taylor 
Councillor T Wendels 
Councillor T Wildgust 

 

 
MEETING: General Purposes Committee 
  

DATE: Thursday, 22 June 2023 at 6.00 pm 
  

VENUE: Castle House, Great North Road, Newark, 
Notts. NG24 1BY 

 
You are hereby requested to attend the above Meeting to be held at the time/place  

and on the date mentioned above for the purpose of transacting the  
business on the Agenda as overleaf. 

 
If you have any queries please contact Helen Brandham on helen.brandham@newark-

sherwooddc.gov.uk 01636 655248. 
 

http://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/


 

 
 
 

 



AGENDA 
 

  Page Nos. 
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2.   Declarations of Interests from Members and Officers 
 

 

3.   Notification to those present that the meeting will be recorded and 
streamed online 
 

 

4.   Minutes of the Meeting Held on 2 March 2023 
 

4 - 7 

5.   General Purposes Forward Plan (July 2023 to June 2024) 
 

8 

PART 1 - ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 
None 
 
PART 2 - ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 
None 
 
PART 3 - STATISTICAL AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW ITEMS 
 
6.   Update on Performance and Enforcement Matters 

 
9 - 11 

PART 4 - EXEMPT AND CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 
 
7.   Exclusion of the Press and Public 

 
 

 To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

8.   Minutes of Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver's Sub-Committee 
 

12 - 13 



NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of General Purposes Committee held in the Castle House, Great 
North Road, Newark NG24 1BY on Thursday, 2 March 2023 at 6.00 pm. 
 

PRESENT: Councillor Mrs R Crowe (Chairman) 
Councillor I Walker (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor L Brazier, Councillor Mrs B Brooks, Councillor M Cope, 
Councillor A Freeman, Councillor P Harris, Councillor R Jackson, 
Councillor Mrs S Michael, Councillor S Saddington, Councillor 
T Thompson, Councillor K Walker, Councillor R White, Councillor 
T Wildgust and Councillor Mrs Y Woodhead 
 

 

27 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS FROM MEMBERS AND OFFICERS 
 

 NOTED that no Member or Officer declared any interest pursuant to any statutory 
requirement in any matter discussed or voted upon at the meeting. 

 
28 NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND 

STREAMED ONLINE 
 

 The Chairman advised that the proceedings were being recorded by the Council and 
that the meeting was being livestreamed and broadcast from the Civic Suite, Castle 
House. 
 

29 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 1 DECEMBER 2022 
 

 AGREED that the Minutes of the meeting held 1 December 2022 were a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
30 FORWARD PLAN (MARCH 2023 TO FEBRUARY 2024) 

 
 NOTED the General Purposes Committee’s Forward Plan from 1 March 2022 to 29 

February 2024. 
 

At this point in the meeting the Chairman took the opportunity to thank all Members for 
their work on the General Purposes Committee for the last four years.  She also thanked 
Officers for their help and support throughout that period. 
 
31 CHANGE OF RUNNING ORDER 

 
 With the agreement of the Committee, the Chairman amended the running order of 

the Agenda.  The next item would be Agenda Item No. 8 – Polling Place Changes – 
May 2023, following which the Agenda order would resume as published. 
 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 4

Agenda Item 4



32 POLLING PLACE CHANGES - MAY 2023 
 

 The Committee considered the report of the Business Manager – Elections & 
Democratic Services which sought to advise Members of a number of required 
changes to polling places ahead of the District/Parish Election to be held on 4 May 
2023.   
 
The report set out the proposed changes to 6 polling places, noting that the station in 
Southwell was still to be resolved.  All the proposed amendments had been shared 
with the existing local Ward Members who had indicated their support.  It was also 
reported that voters would be advised of the changes on polling cards which would be 
issued in sufficient time to enable voters to request a postal vote, should they not 
wish to vote in person.  The Council would also publicise the changes through social 
medial channels. 
 
In considering the report, a Member referred to the proposed change in Bilsthorpe 
from the Village Hall, which was not available due to refurbishment works, to The 
Green Community Centre.  He noted that this location was at the edge of the village 
and queried whether alternative, more central locations, had been considered, 
suggesting the library and the welfare as possible alternatives.  In response, the 
Business Manager advised that they could be considered and noted that it was hoped 
that this was only a temporary change. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that: 
 

a) the proposed change in polling places for the reasons set out in the 
report be approved; 

 

b) delegated authority be given to the Returning Officer to finalise the 
new polling place in Southwell following consultation with the 
Chairman of the General Purposes Committee and local Ward 
Members; and  

 

c) a general delegation be given to the Returning Officer to make any 

further changes which may become necessary, again following 

consultation with the Chairman of the General Purposes Committee 

and relevant Ward Members. 

33 INTRODUCTION OF LOW AND ZERO EMISSION LICENSED VEHICLES 
 

 The Committee considered the report of the Environmental Health & Licensing 
Manager which sought Members’ approval for a minor amendment to the Hackney 
Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy 2022 in order to facilitate low and zero 
emission vehicles and to improve accessibility.   
 
The report set out the definition of an ultra-low emissions vehicle (ULEV)and how the 
current policy did not facilitate the licensing of electric format vehicles with paragraph 
2.0 of the report setting out the proposed amendment to the policy to enable their 
registration. 
 
 

Agenda Page 5



In considering the report a Member raised the issue of the longevity of ULEVs, noting 
their higher capital cost and the low availability of second hand vehicles.  He referred 
to the current age limit of vehicles within the policy, noting that it was mainly in 
relation to the bodywork of vehicles and not the engine.  He noted that the engine of 
ULEVs would last for numerous years and requested that Officers give the matter 
consideration.  In response, the Environmental Health & Licensing Manager advised 
that a consultation with the community would be undertaken in the future to look at 
improving the provision of electric vehicles and also the possibility of introducing 
some incentives for drivers to choose such vehicles in the future. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that the Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy 

2022 be amended to facilitate low and zero emission vehicles and to 
improve accessibility. 

 
34 REVIEW OF TAXI FARES 

 
 The Committee considered the report of the Senior Licensing Officer which sought to 

update Members on the results of the taxi fare review consultation.   
 
It was reported that during the review all 143 licensed Hackney Carriage & Private 
Hire Drivers had been asked questions as listed within the report.  Of those 143 
drivers contacted, only 9 had chosen to respond, with their comments being listed in 
Appendix A.  Officers carried out a comparison of costs with other local authorities 
within Nottinghamshire, the findings of which were detailed in Appendix B with 
Members being asked to consider the 3 options as set out in paragraph 2 of the 
report.   
 
In considering the report, Members noted the poor response to the consultation and 
queried the cost of recalibrating the meters, should an amendment to the tariff be 
made.  They were advised that this would be at a cost of £25/£35 per vehicle.  In 
relation to Option 3 – to only amend the starting time of tariff two (evening tariff), 
Members agreed that the current start time of 23:00 hrs was too late and suggested 
that this be amended to 20:00 hrs. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that the starting time of the tariff two (evening tariff) be 

amended with a revised starting time of 20:00 hrs.   
 

35 UPDATE ON PERFORMANCE AND ENFORCEMENT MATTERS 
 

 The Committee considered the report of the Senior Licensing Officer which sought to 
present to Members the activities and performance of the Licensing Team which 
included details of current ongoing enforcement issues. 
 
Information contained within the report related to the number of applications for 
grants and renewal of licences for Hackney Carriage; Private Hire; and Ambulance 
Drivers together with those for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles.  A note of 
ongoing enforcement activities was also listed for information as to what action had 
been taken to-date.   
 
 

Agenda Page 6



In considering the report a Member raised the issue of how touting was dealt with on 
private land as he believed this to be inconsistent, specifically referring to incidents at 
the Northgate Railway Station.  In response, Members were advised that rail 
employees had been moving on vehicles that had been touting as it was their land and 
property. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that the report be noted. 
 

36 MINUTES OF HC/PH DRIVER'S SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

 NOTED the Minutes of the Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Drivers Sub-
Committee held on 17 January 2023. 

 
 
Meeting closed at 6.16 pm. 
 
 
 
Chairman 

Agenda Page 7



 

 

 
 

Forward Plan of the General Purposes Committee Decisions from 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024 
 

This document records some of the items that will be submitted to the General Purposes Committee over the course of the next twelve months.  
 

These committee meetings are open to the press and public. 
 

Agenda papers for General Purposes Committee meetings are published on the Council’s website 5 days before the meeting http://www.newark-
sherwooddc.gov.uk/agendas/.  Any items marked confidential or exempt will not be available for public inspection. 
 

Meeting Date Subject for Decision and Brief Description Contact Officer Details 

14.09.23 Update on Kirkgate Taxi Rank nicola.rowlands@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk 

14.09.23 Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Licensing: Best Practice Guidance for Licensing 
Authorities in England 

damian.wilkins@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk 

 

A
genda P

age 8

A
genda Item

 5

http://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/agendas/
http://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/agendas/
mailto:nicola.rowlands@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk
mailto:damian.wilkins@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk


 
 
 
 
 

 
Report to: General Purposes Committee Meeting – 22 June 2023 
 

Director Lead: Matthew Finch, Director – Communities & Environment 
 

Lead Officer: Nicola Rowlands, Senior Licensing Officer – extn 5894 
 

Report Summary 

Report Title Update on Performance and Enforcement Matters  

Purpose of Report 

To provide Members of the Committee with details of the various 
activities undertaken by the Licensing Team in relation to Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire Drivers, Private Ambulance Drivers together 
with House to House and Street Collections  

Recommendation That the report be noted. 

 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1 A new applicant for a Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers or Private Ambulance 

Drivers Licence have to undergo various checks.  These include a: Disclosure and Barring 
check; DVLA check; two references are required; Group II medical; and knowledge & 
ability tests.   

 
1.2 This report covers the period from 1 January to 31 March 2023 inclusive and sets out 

the range and number of licence applications during this period.  It also highlights any 
activity required as a result of the applications.   

 

Application Type New 
Applications 
Rec’d 

Renewal of 
Applications 
Rec’d 

Number 
Issued 

Comments 

Hackney Carriage/ 
Private Hire Driver 

11 13 22 2 pending  

Ambulance Drivers 8 10 15 3 pending  

Hackney Carriage 
Vehicles 

9 20 29  

Private Hire 
Vehicles 

0 12 12  

Private Ambulance 
Vehicle Licence 

0 66 66  

 
 
 

Agenda Page 9

Agenda Item 6



1.3 Street Collections 
 

No Street collections took place within the reporting period of 1 January to 31 March 
2023.  
 

1.4 House to House Collections 
 
 The table below sets out the numbers of collections undertaken within the reporting 

period of 1 January to 31 March 2023 and the charities supported.  The organisations 
undertaking the collections are required to complete a return that sets out the 80% of 
the collection that is returned to the charity.   

 

 
1.5 Enforcement Issues 

 
Enforcement Activity between 1 January to 31st March 2023 

 
Location Activity Date Case Opened Action Taken So Far 

Lincoln Street Taxi 
Rank, Newark 

Officer observed 2 HC 
vehicles on the rank 
not displaying plates 
in correct manner. 

4.1.2023 LEO advised both 
vehicles to display the 
plate correctly as per 
licence conditions. 
LEO re-inspected and all 
in order. 

HC Newark Complaint that a HC 
had an illegal number 
plate 

26.1.2023 LEO spoke to HC 
proprietor who changed 
the number plate. 

London Road, Newark Complaint regarding 
driving standards and 
aggressive behaviour 
of taxi driver 

28.1.2023 LEO spoke to driver who 
denied aggressive 
behaviour.  Driver was 
issued a letter reminding 
them of their behaviours 
whilst driving a licensed 
vehicle. 

Coral, Dale Lane, 
Blidworth  

Routine Inspection  27.2.2023 2 x actions (summary on 
display, plan of premise 
to be made available) 
LEO follow up – all in 
order 

 

Charity  Date 
Total Amount 

Collected 
% Returned to 

Charity 

Child and Teenage Cancer and 
Leukaemia Foundation  

Jan 2023 £32 100% 

Children with Cancer UK 24.01.23 £53.72 85% 

Leukaemia & Myeloma Research 
UK 

09.02.23 £214 80% 

World Cancer Care 
Jan to 
March 2023 

£289.30 100% 

Agenda Page 10



HC Newark Routine inspection of 
vehicle at Deport  

1.3.2023 LEO spoke to driver as 
car failed inspection due 
to the cleanliness and 
foul smell of the car.  The 
driver was reminded of 
standard expected of 
drivers and their 
vehicles. 

HC, Castle House, 
Newark 

Routine Inspection 8.3.2023 All in order 

HC, Castle House, 
Newark 

Routine Inspection  8.3.2023 All in order  

 
2.0 Proposal/Options Considered 
 
 This report is intended to provide Members with a summary of the various activities 

undertaken by the Licensing Team in relation to Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers, 
Private Hire Ambulance Drivers together with House to House and Street Collections. 

 
3.0 Implications 

In writing this report and in putting forward recommendations, Officers have considered 
the following implications: Data Protection, Digital and Cyber Security, Equality and 
Diversity, Financial, Human Resources, Human Rights, Legal, Safeguarding and 
Sustainability and where appropriate they have made reference to these implications 
and added suitable expert comment, where appropriate.  

 
Background Papers and Published Documents 
Except for previously published documents, which will be available elsewhere, the documents 
listed here will be available for inspection in accordance with Section 100D of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 
None 

Agenda Page 11



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 12

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 2 March 2023
	5 General Purposes Forward Plan (July 2023 to June 2024)
	6 Update on Performance and Enforcement Matters
	8 Minutes of Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver's Sub-Committee

